
Environment and 
Community Panel
Agenda

Wednesday, 25th May, 2016
at 6.00 pm

in 

Meeting Rooms 1, 2 & 3
King’s Court
Chapel Street
King’s Lynn
PE30 1EX



If you require parts of this document in another  language, large print, audio, Braille or any alternative 

format please contact the Council Information Centre on 01553 616200 and we will do our best to 

help.

LATVIAN
Ja Jums nepieciešamas daļas no šī dokumenta citā valodā, lielā drukā, audio, Braila rakstā vai 

alternatīvā formātā, lūdzu, sazinieties ar Padomes informācijas centru (Council Information Centre) pa 

01553 616200 un mēs centīsimies Jums palīdzēt.

RUSSIAN
Если вам нужны части этого документа на другом языке, крупным шрифтом, шрифтом Брайля, 

в аудио- или ином формате, обращайтесь в Информационный Центр Совета по тел.: 01553 

616200, и мы постараемся вам помочь.

LITHUANIAN
Jei pageidaujate tam tikros šio dokumento dalies kita kalba, dideliu šriftu, Brailio raštu, kitu formatu ar 

norite užsisakyti garso įrašą, susisiekite su Savivaldybės informacijos centru (Council Information 

Centre) telefonu 01553 616200 ir mes pasistengsime jums kiek įmanoma padėti.

POLISH
Jeśli pragną Państwo otrzymać fragmenty niniejszego dokumentu w innym języku, w dużym druku, w 

formie nagrania audio, alfabetem Braille’a lub w jakimkolwiek innym alternatywnym formacie, prosimy 

o kontakt z Centrum Informacji Rady pod numerem 01553 616200, zaś my zrobimy, co możemy, by 

Państwu pomóc.

PORTUGUESE
Se necessitar de partes deste documento em outro idioma, impressão grande, áudio, Braille ou 

qualquer outro formato alternativo, por favor contacte o Centro de Informações do Município pelo 

01553 616200, e faremos o nosso melhor para ajudar.



King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

Tuesday, 17 May 2016

Dear Member

Environment and Community Panel

You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Panel which will be held 
on Wednesday, 25th May, 2016 at 6.00 pm in Meeting Rooms 1, 2 & 3, King's 
Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn to discuss the business shown below.

Yours sincerely 

Chief Executive

AGENDA

1.  Appointment of Chairman for the Municipal Year  

2.  Appointment of Vice Chairman for the Municipal Year  

3.  Apologies for absence  

To receive any apologies for absence. 

4.  Minutes  (Pages 6 - 12)

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 

5.  Declarations of interest  

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not 
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it 
relates.  If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Member should 
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.



Those declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part 
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply 
observing the meeting from the public seating area. 

6.  Urgent Business  

To consider any business which, by reason of special circumstances, the 
Chairman proposed to accept as urgent under Section 100(b)(4)(b) of the 
Local Government Act, 1972. 

7.  Members Present Pursuant to Standing Order 34  

Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the 
Chairman of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard 
before the meeting commences.  Any Member attending the meeting under 
Standing Order 34 will only be permitted to speak on those items which have 
been previously notified to the Chairman. 

8.  Chairman's Correspondence  

If any. 

9.  Matters referred to the Panel from other Council Bodies and responses 
made to previous Panel recommendations/requests  

None. 

10.  Food Safety Team Annual Update  

11.  Appointments to Outside Bodies  (Pages 13 - 15)

12.  Work Programme  (Pages 16 - 17)

To consider the draft Work Programme.
 

13.  Date of the next meeting  

To note that the next meeting of the Environment and Community Panel is 
scheduled to take place on Wednesday 6 July 2016 at 6.00pm in the 
Committee Suite, King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, PE30 1EX. 

To:

Environment and Community Panel: Miss L Bambridge, Mrs C Bower, A Bubb, 
Mrs S Collop, Mrs S Fraser, G Hipperson, M Hopkins, J Moriarty, P Rochford, 
C Sampson, T Smith and A Tyler

Portfolio Holders:

Councillor B Long – Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for the Environment
Councillor A Lawrence – Portfolio Holder for Community 



Appropriate Officers:

Ray Harding – Chief Executive
Vicki Hopps – Environmental Health Manager
Honor Howell – Assistant Director

Press



1011

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY PANEL

Minutes from the Meeting of the Environment and Community Panel held on 
Wednesday, 23rd March, 2016 at 6.00 pm in the Research Room, Town Hall, 

Saturday Market Place

PRESENT: C Sampson (Chairman)
Councillors Miss L Bambridge, Mrs C Bower, Mrs S Collop, P Colvin, 

G Hipperson, M Hopkins, J Moriarty, T Smith, Mrs S Squire and Mrs J Westrop

Portfolio Holders:
Councillor B Long – Portfolio Holder for Environment 

Officers:
Chris Bamfield – Executive Director
Honor Howell – Assistant Director
David Thompson – Marketing and Development Manager

By Invitation:
Councillors A Bubb, Mrs E Watson and Mrs S Young.

EC59:  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Fraser and 
Rochford.

EC60:  MINUTES 

RESOLVED: The Minutes from the Environment and Community Panel 
meeting held on 24 February 2016 were agreed as a correct record.

EC61:  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There was none.

EC62:  URGENT BUSINESS 

There was no Urgent Business.

Councillor Moriarty requested that the Norfolk Waste Contract and the 
impact on service and cost to the Council be considered as urgent 
business and discussed by the Panel.  The Chairman explained that 
representatives from Norfolk County Council had been invited to attend 
the meeting but had not attended.  The item of business would be 
considered at the Environment and Community Panel Meeting 
scheduled to take place on 20 April 2016 or at a date where 
representatives from Norfolk County Council were able to attend.

6

Agenda Item 4



1012

EC63:  MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34 

There was none.

EC64:  CHAIRMAN'S CORRESPONDENCE 

There was none.

EC65:  MATTERS REFERRED TO THE PANEL FROM OTHER COUNCIL 
BODIES AND RESPONSES MADE TO PREVIOUS PANEL 
RECOMMENDATIONS/REQUESTS 

The Panel noted the responses made by Cabinet to the 
recommendations from the Panel meeting on 24 February 2016 in 
respect of the following items:

 Crematorium Project Update
 Modifications to the Local Plan
 Assessing King’s Lynn and West Norfolk’s Housing Requirement.

EC66:  WASTE AND RECYCLING UPDATE 

The Marketing and Development Manager provided those present with 
information on communicating waste and recycling.

A copy of his presentation is attached.

The Chairman thanked the Marketing and Development Manager for 
his presentation and invited questions and comments from the Panel 
as summarised below.

Councillor Mrs Squire asked if data on levels of waste collected had 
been compared to population growth.  The Marketing and Development 
Manager explained that comparisons had not been made, but 
information could be made available if required.

The Portfolio Holder for Environment, Councillor Long felt that the 
increased levels of waste could be down to affluence and people now 
buying more products and getting rid of old products now that the 
recession was over.  He commented that the population increase 
meant more homes and more people paying Council Tax to pay for the 
waste collection service.

Councillor Mrs Bower referred to textiles and commented that they 
could sometimes be bulky items.  The Marketing and Development 
Officer commented that textiles and bedding could not be recycled.  
Options could be looked at such as a textile collection services and 
also small electrical items which often were put in recycling and caused 

7



1013

contamination.  The Chairman explained that there were options 
available to recycle textiles such as the bins at the fire station, or giving 
them to animal rescue centres.  The Marketing and Development 
Officer commented that he worked with the Salvation Army.

The Vice Chairman explained that residents within her ward had raised 
issues regarding bagged collections and agreed to raise her issues 
with the Marketing and Development Manager.  The Vice Chairman 
referred to a questionnaire which had been sent to all residents and 
commented that she had not received one.  In response to the 
questions raised by the Vice Chairman, the Marketing and 
Development Manager explained that an information pack would be 
sent to all households on how they could be involved in the waste and 
recycling project and would include details on how residents could 
become Waste and Recycling Champions.  He anticipated that fifty to 
sixty Champions would be appointed and over thirty had been 
appointed already from people who had expressed an interest.

The Marketing and Development Manager informed the Panel that 
public engagement exercises and ways to raise awareness would be 
carried out, including door knocking, face to face contact and the use of 
social media.

The Marketing and Development Manager explained that data could be 
retrieved from the collection vehicles about the service provided, waste 
collected and amount of contamination.  He explained that bins with 
obvious contamination were tagged and not collected.

The Portfolio Holder for Environment, Councillor Long explained that 
over the years the Council had taken many different approaches to 
increase recycling levels and reduce the amount of contamination.  He 
explained that fixed penalty notices and enforcement action had been 
used in the past.

The Vice Chairman commented that residents in her Ward who had 
bagged collections had found it difficult to request more bags and the 
Assistant Director agreed to look at setting up an electronic form so 
that they could be requested online and would be delivered during the 
collection rounds.

Councillor Moriarty felt that the Council should look at a more purist 
approach and should accept that the service may come at a cost.  He 
asked if there were ways the Council could make the trade waste 
collection service viable by offering incentives.  He also referred to 
‘recycling on the move’ in public places and asked how this could be 
rolled out as it had been in other places such as train stations and 
airports.  The Marketing and Development Manager explained that 
trade waste would be looked at and how the Council could encourage 
take up.  He referred to the Sustainable Restaurant Association which 
provided advice on reducing the amount of food used which would 
result in financial savings for the business.

8



1014

In response to a question from Councillor Smith, the Marketing and 
Development Manager explained that social media monitoring would 
be used to underpin the key messages that were put out.  The Council 
would not reply to individual comments, but use the comments to 
formulate the information provided to residents.

Councillor Hipperson referred to fly tipping and how incidents were 
usually dealt with very quickly.  The Chairman reiterated Councillor 
Hipperson’s comments and commended the service provided.

In response to a question from Councillor Moriarty, the Portfolio Holder 
for Environment commented that providing public recycling bins on the 
street was likely to result in a lot of contaminated recycling.  The 
Executive Director explained that ‘recycling in the move’ worked in 
busy places such as airports and train stations, but did not feel that it 
would work in the Borough.  The Executive Director referred to budget 
savings which were required and the limited resources available.  He 
commented that the value of recyclables varied and any initiatives and 
projects taken forward by the Council needed to be financially viable.  
The Marketing and Development Manager commented that with 
regards to ‘recycling on the work could be carried out to encourage 
people to take their recycling home with them and dispose of it 
correctly.

Councillor Hipperson referred to the public perception when bins were 
emptied as it sometimes looked as if all waste was being put into the 
same waste cart.  The Portfolio Holder for Environment explained that 
the vehicles had split bodies so different types of waste could be 
collected on the same round.  This information was available on the 
vehicles and some of them had side loading compartments.

RESOLVED: (i) The update was noted.
(ii) That the Marketing and Development Manager provide the Panel 
with an update at their meeting in August.

EC67:  ANNUAL FEEDBACK REPORTS FROM OUTSIDE BODIES 

EC68:  COLLEGE COUNCIL LIAISON COMMITTEE - REPRESENTATIVE 
COUNCILLOR MRS WATSON 

Councillor Mrs Watson provided the Panel with an update of the 
Outside Body.  She explained that they had met recently and this was 
the first meeting for two years.  She provided the Panel with details of 
the challenges, opportunities and successes of the College.

The Chairman thanked Councillor Mrs Watson for her report and 
invited questions and comments from the Panel.  

9



1015

The Vice Chairman asked if the College offered courses which 
reflected the needs of local businesses.  Councillor Mrs Watson 
commented that the College were looking at this.

RESOLVED: The Panel noted the report.

EC69:  AREA MUSEUM COMMITTEE - REPRESENTATIVES: 
COUNCILLORS SMITH, WING-PENTELOW AND MRS WRIGHT 

A report had been submitted by Councillor Mrs Wright and was 
included in the agenda.  Councillor Smith provided the Panel with an 
overview of the Area Museums Committee.

RESOLVED: The Panel noted the report.

EC70:  NORFOLK COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP SCRUTINY SUB 
COMMITTEE - REPRESENTATIVE: COUNCILLOR MRS WESTROP 

Councillor Mrs Westrop presented her report which had been included 
in the agenda.  She provided the Panel with an update on the work of 
the Outside Body.  She asked for information on what the Borough 
Council had in place for dealing with domestic violence and anti-social 
behaviour.  The Chairman commented that the Police had systems in 
place and suggested that representatives from the Outside Body liaise 
with the police.

The Portfolio Holder for Environment, Councillor Long commented that 
the Police and Crime Commissioner had a funding allocation for the 
prevention of crime and allocated money to charities who dealt with 
domestic violence.

The Assistant Director informed the Panel that the Council’s 
Community Safety Team worked closely with the Police and met twice 
a week to share information.  All reports of domestic violence and anti-
social behaviour to the Council were risk assessed and then dealt with 
be either the Community Safety and Neighbourhood Nuisance Team or 
the Police, depending on the circumstances.  The Assistant Director 
informed those present that all front line staff had received training on 
recognising radicalisation and safeguarding.  She suggested that 
Councillor Mrs Westrop liaise with the Personnel and Community 
Safety Department, who could provide more information on the 
procedures in place.

RESOLVED: The report was noted.

EC71:  NORFOLK HEALTH OVERVIEW SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 
REPRESENTATIVE COUNCILLOR MRS YOUNG 

10



1016

Councillor Mrs Young provided the Panel with an update on the Norfolk 
Health Overview Scrutiny Committee.  She explained that the 
Committee received reports from the four Clinical Commissioning 
Groups and concerns were addressed.

She explained that perceived shortfalls in service by Health Care 
providers were noted, and the relevant body was expected to address 
issues raised, and to return to the Committee with evidence of 
improvement in service.   The process continued until there was 
evidence of good practice. 

Councillor Mrs Young provided the Panel with areas of concern raised 
by the Committee which included the provision of mental health 
services, children’s mental health services, continuing health care in 
Norfolk, out of hours services and discharges from hospitals.

RESOLVED: The report was noted.

EC72:  WEST NORFOLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORT - REPRESENTATIVE 
COUNCILLOR MORIARTY 

A report had been published as a supplementary item to the Agenda by 
Councillor Moriarty.

RESOLVED: The report was noted.

EC73:  WEST NORFOLK DISABILITY FORUM - REPRESENTATIVES 
COUNCILLORS BUBB, BARON CHENERY OF HORSBRUGH, 
BAMBRIDGE, FRASER AND SQUIRE 

Councillor Bubb presented his report on the work of the West Norfolk 
Disability Forum.  He referred to the events put on by the Forum and 
felt that they needed to be refreshed and public awareness needed to 
be raised.  Councillor Bubb commented that work needed to be carried 
out to increase attendance at the Forum meetings and it would be 
beneficial if representatives from local organisations concerned with 
people with disabilities could attend the meetings.

The Chairman suggested that Councillor Bubb put together proposals 
on how the events could be made more successful and how 
attendance could be increased at the meetings and liaise with the 
Chairman so that an update could be presented at a future meeting of 
the Environment and Community Panel.  The Chairman suggested that 
Councillor Bubb could include some information in the Members 
Bulletin to seek the views of other Members.

RESOLVED: The report was noted.

11



1017

EC74:  WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD DECISIONS LIST 

The Chairman referred to the Panel’s Work Programme and requested 
that Members of the Panel contact him if they had suggestions on 
items they would like to be considered at a future meeting.

Councillor Bubb requested that the Panel look at urban facilities, 
enhancement and street furniture.

RESOLVED: The Work Programme and forward decision list was 
noted.

EC75:  DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Environment and Community Panel would be 
held on Wednesday 20 April 2016 at 4.00pm in the Committee Suite, 
King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn.

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm

12



POLICY REVIEW & DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Type of Report 
(Review/Consultation/Monitoring):
Consultation

Portfolio(s): 
Environment & Community

Author Name: Rebecca Parker Consultations:
Tel: 01553-616327

Email:  rebecca.parker@west-
norfolk.gov.uk 
OPEN 

Panel: Environment and Community Panel
Date: 25 May 2016 
Subject: Nominations to Outside Bodies and Partnerships

Summary

The Panel is invited to nominate representatives to participate in the outside 
bodies and partnerships which fall within the Environment and Community 
Panel’s remit as listed within the report.

Recommendations

(1) That nominations be made by the Panel.
(2) That the reporting arrangements be noted, as shown in the report.
(3) That Council be requested to approve the nominations made by the 

Panel at their meeting on 30th June 2016.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Cabinet at its meeting on 24 May 2016 will confirm a number of 
Cabinet appointments to outside bodies and partnerships. Further 
appointments are made by the Council in the following categories:

 Scrutiny and regulatory roles
 Parish level representation, parished and unparished areas
 General appointments

2.0 INSURANCE COVER FOR BOROUGH COUNCILLORS

2.1 The Council’s insurance will indemnify any employee or member 
arising from their service on the board or participation in the capacity of 
governor, officer, trustee, director, committee member or other official of 
any not-for profit entity other than the insured.

Provided always that:

13

Agenda Item 11



a) The service or participation by the employee or member is 
specifically requested by or under the specific direction of the 
insured.

b) The insured is legally entitled to approve the service or participation 
and to indemnify the employee of member in respect of it.

c) Any payment will only be made by the insurer for an amount in 
excess of any indemnification or insurance coverage provided by the 
not-for-profit entity or afforded from any other source and to which 
the employee or member is entitled. 

2.2 When a member is appointed to serve on an outside body, they should 
also ensure that as well as completing the Register of Financial and 
Other Interest form, they should complete the annual “Related Party 
Transactions form”, with the details of those bodies on which they serve.  

3.0 FEEDBACK FROM MEMBERS ON OUTSIDE BODIES

3.1 The Environment and Community Panel should be able to request 
reports from Councillors serving on outside bodies which fall within their 
remit.  By programming the reports over the Panel’s annual timetable of 
meetings, it would be possible for members both to assess the 
usefulness of making appointments to bodies and be informed of any 
relevant matters.

4.0 APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES

4.1 This Panel is invited to nominate representative(s) to participate in the 
outside bodies and partnerships listed below which fall within the Panel’s 
remit.  For information, details of the representatives for 2015/2016 are 
listed below.

 Borough Council/College of West Anglia Liaison Board – 1 
representative
Frequency of meetings: once every six months.
Venue: Alternates between the College and the Council
Time: 10.00am
2015/2016 representative: Mrs E Watson

 King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Area Museums Committee – 3 
representatives 
Frequency of meetings: Quarterly
Venue: Alternates between Council Offices and King’s Lynn Museum.
Time: Usually 2.15pm
2015/2016 representatives: Councillors T Smith, T Wing-Pentelow and 
Mrs A Wright.

 Norfolk County Council – Norfolk Countywide Community Safety 
Partnership Scrutiny Sub-Panel – 1 representative & substitute
Frequency of meetings: quarterly – usually on a Monday

14



Venue: Norfolk County Council
Time: 9.30am
2015/2016 representatives: Councillor Westrop, and 1 vacancy for 
substitute Member.

 Norfolk Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 1 representative 
& substitute 
Frequency of meetings: Monthly
Venue: Norfolk County Council
Time: 10.00am
2015/2016 representatives: Councillors Mrs S Young and S Sandell 
(substitute)

 West Norfolk Community Transport Project – 1 representative
Frequency of meetings: Quarterly – usually on a Monday
Venue: North Lynn
Time: 5.30pm
2015/2016 representative: Councillor J Moriarty

 West Norfolk Disability Forum – 5 representatives
Frequency of meetings: Three times per year.
Venue: Council Offices
Time: 2.30pm
2015/2016 representatives: Councillors L Bambridge, T Bubb, S Squire, 
Miss S Sandell and Baron Chenery of Horsbrugh.

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Mileage and subsistence allowances for Councillor attending meetings.

6.0 ACCESS TO INFORMATION

6.1 Current lists of member representation
ACSeS report on liabilities of Outside Bodies

15



17/05/2016

DRAFT - ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY WORK PROGRAMME 2016/2017

25 May 2016

 Nominations to Outside Bodies
 Membership of Informal Working Groups (if any are in existence)
 Food safety team Annual Update – Vicki Hopps

6 July 2016 – meeting to be preceded by a tour of the depot – time to be confirmed

 Leisure Trust Update
 Pay to use Loos – C Bamfield
 West Norfolk Disability Forum – Annual Update
 Joint working with Norfolk Constabulary and SNAP updates – John Greenhalgh – invite KLACC
 Homelessness Update – Sheila Farley

31 August 2016

 Waste and Recycling – David Thompson

12 October 2016

 Waste and Recycling Behaviour change programme – Chris Bamfield
 Annual Review of increase in Licensing Fees (originally came to Panel in October 2015) – John Gilbraith 
 Air Quality Annual Update - Dave Robson
 Update on Grounds Maintenance Review – Originally came to Panel in Jan 2016 – Chris Bamfield/Sarah Moore

23 November 2016

 Leisure Trust

17 January 2017

16

A
genda Item

 12



17/05/2016

 Norfolk Museums Service – Annual Update – Robin Hanley
 Capital Programme/Budget

8 February 2017
15 March 2017

 Annual Feedback reports from Outside Bodies

26 April 2017

To be confirmed

 Effect of wind turbines on the fishing industry 
 Visit to the air raid shelter
 Visit to Crematorium
 Visit to Leisure facilities – Oasis and Downham Market Leisure Centre
 Waste/Recycling/Depot & Nursery Visit
 Urban Facilities, enhancement and street furniture

17


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	11 Appointments to Outside Bodies
	12 Work Programme

